Judgment of the Lords of the Judicial Commitiee
of the Privy Council on the Appeals (3) of Moon-
shee Buzloor Ruheem, Appellant, v. Shumsoonnissa
Begum, Respondent ; and of Judoonath Bose. Ap-
pellant, v. Shumsoonnissa  Bequm, Respondent,
Jrom the High Court of Judicature at Caleutta :
delivered on the 4th July, 1867,

Present :

Sm Jams W, Convice,
Sm Enwarp Vavcuax Winniams.
Sm Riceanp Tormy KispeERSLEy.

S LawreNce PrEL.

THE Appellant, in three of the four Appeals of
which their Lordships have now to dispose, is
Moonshee Buzloor Ruheem, a Bengal Zemindar.
The Respondent, in all four Appeals, is his wife,
Shumsoonnissa Begum. Her father, Moonshee
Hossain Ali, died in the year 1837, possessed of
considerable wealth. Tlis co-heirs, according to
Mahomedan law, were his three widows, Ashruff-
nissa, Oomdatunnissa, and the Respondent’s mo-
ther, Komerunnissa ; two danghters, viz. the Re-
spondent and a posthumous child, named Nujmun-
nissa, and his nephew Boo Ali, His estate was
divisible amongst these persons, in twenty-fourth
parts ar shares, of which the Respondent and her
gister each took eight. The settlement of his af-
fairs, however, oecasioned a good deal of litigation,
and the Respondent did not obtain full possession
of her share until November, 1847.

She had previously, and in the month of April
or May of that year, being then a widow, with
five children by her first husband, become the wife
of the Appellant the Moonshee. By him she has
had one danghter. In July, 1853, in consaquence
of the death of her sister Nujmunnissa, which took
place in August, 1849, and of the compromise of a
suit with that lady’s husband, she received a large
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accession of fortune. Her cohabitation with the
Moonshee continued until the 28th of December,
1855; when, on a complaint by her of ill-usage on
his part, she was allowed, by the Magistrate of the
Twenty-four Pergunnahs, to leave his house. They
have since lived separately, and the present litiga-
tion dates from that time.

On the 8th of April, 1856, she instituted against
her husband a suit for the recovery of her pro-
perty, which, she alleged, he had detained or made
away with. On the same day he commenced
against her and one of her sons-in-law a suit, of
which the object was, to enforce his marital rights,
by compelling her return to his house and control.
These suits, in the argument before us, were called
respectively, the “Property Suit” and the “Re-
stitution Suit”—a nomenclature which it may be
convenient to adopt.

The «Property Suit” was originally brought
against the husband alone. By his answer it ap-
peared that certain portions of the landed property
claimed by her had got into the possession of two
persons, named Juddonath Bose and Mirtonjoy
Bose. They were accordingly brought before the
Court by supplemental plaint, on an allegation that
they were the dependants of the principal Defen-
dant the Moonshee, and held benamee for him.
The suit was tried before the Civil Judge of the
Twenty-four Pergunnahs. His decree, which bore
date the 25th of July, 1859, awarded to the Re-
spondent Company’s paper, to the amount of Rs.
2,34,800, and cash to the amount of Rs. 20,511,
dismissing the suit as to the other moveable pro-
perty claimed by her. It also decreed the restitu-
tion to her of the immoveable property held by
Juddonath Bose, with mesne profits, to be paid by
the Moonshee, but dismissed the suit as against
Mirtonjoy Bose without costs. All the Defendants
appealed against this decree, the Appeal of Mir-
tonjoy being for his costs. The High Court of
Calcutta, by its decree, dated the 29th of Novem-
ber, 1862, confirmed, with some slight variations,
the decree as to the Company’s paper, directing
the Moonshee to restore the papers, to the amount
of Rs. 82,000, which remained in his hands; and
to replace the others by the purchase of Com-
pany’s papers, to an amount equal to that of the




3

missing papers, but reversed the Judge's decree as
to the Rs 20511 cash. 1t confirmed, however,
the decree as to the property held by the Appel-
lant Judoonath Bose. making him also responsible
for the mesne profits.  And it further decereed the
reconvevance to the Respondent by Mirtonjoy, of
the immoveable property held by him. Against
this decree the Appellants, Moonshee Buzloor Ru-
heem and Judoonath Bose, have severally appealed
to ITer Majesty. No Appeal has been preferred
by Mirtonjoy Bose.

The Restitution Suit was tried by the Principal
Sadr Ameen of the Twenty-four Pergunnahs, who,
by his decree, dated the 28th of December, 1560,
dismissed it with costs, On Appeal, the Iligh
Court of Calcutta confirmed that decision by its
decrce of the 25th of July, 1863, The Moounshee
has appealed against both these decrees.

His remaining Appeal is against a decree of the
High Court, made on the 13th of February, 1863,
in another suit instituted against him by his wife.
The object of that suit was to recover from him a
Company’s paper for Rs. 10,000, for which. as she
alleged, she had inadvertently omitted to sue in
the Property Suit.  Objections, which will be
hercaiter considered, were taken to the mainten-
ance of this fresh suit, and were allowed by the
Zilluh Judge. DBut the High Court reversed lis
decision, and remanded the cause for trial on the
merits,

Having thus stated the general history and scope
of this unfortunate and complex litigation, their
Lordships will proceed to deal first with the Ap-
peals in the Property Suit. The Respondent
having preferred no Appeal against the decree of
the Tligh Court. her claims. ia respect of the move-
able property. must be taken to be now reduceil to
one for the Government securities, to the amount
of Rs. 2,234,800, which the Moonshee has hwoen
ordercd to restore or replace. And their I.ord-
ships will begin by considering whether the de-
erces under Appeal can be supported against him
in that respect.

That all these securities came to her hands
whilst she was an inmate of his zenanah ; that they
all passed from her to him; that some of them re-
main in his possession; and that others have been
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traced to his creditors,—is incontestable. That she
came to his house a wealthy woman, and left it
almost destitute, admits of no doubt. . And it can
scarcely be denied that transactions of this nature
and magnitude between husband and wife, with
such a result, require a full and clear explanation
on the part of the former, supported by such
evidence as shall satisfy a Court of Justice that
they were conducted fairly and properly, and with
a dune regard to the rights and interests of the
wife. Her case is, that the securities were in-
trusted to him for a particular purpose, viz. that
of receiving the interest on them for her, and that
though they may have been indorsed, she never
meant to transfer the property in them. His case
is, that he purchased them from her on several
occasions, and that on their indorsement and
delivery he paid her the full value for them. The
principle of the judgments of the Courts below
seems to be, that although the wife may have failed
to establish affirmatively the precise case alleged by
her, her husband, having admitted the receipt of the
securities from her, was bound to show something
more than mere indorsement and delivery; that
the relation of the parties being what it was, it lay
upon him to prove that the transactions which he
set up were dond fide sales and purchases, and that
e actually gave full value for what he received from
her. Their Lordships are clearly of opinion that
this is a sound principle, and in accordance with
the long-established practice of the Courts in
India. Mr. Attorney-General, indeed, argued that
a distinction is to be drawn in this respect between
a Mahomedan and a Hindoo woman ; nay, that in
all that concerns her power over her property, the
former is by law more independent than an Eng-
lishwoman of her husband. It is no doubt true
that the Mussulman woman, when married, retains
dominion over her own properﬁy, and is free from
the control of her husband in its disposition. But
“the Hindoo law is equally indulgent in that respect
to the Hindoo wife. It may also be granted that
in other respects the Mahomedan law is more fa-
vourable than the Hindoo law to women and their
rights, and does not insist so strongly on their ne-
cessary dependence upon, and subjection to, the
stronger sex. But it would be unsafe to draw from
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the letter of a law, which, with the religion on
which it is chicly founded, is spread over a large
portion of the globe, any inference as to the capa-
city for business of a woman of a particular race or
country. In India the Mussulman woman of rank,
like the Hindoo, is shut up in the Zenanah, and
has no communication, except from behind the Pur-
dah, or screen, with any male persons, save a few
privileged relatives or dependants; the culture of
the one is not, generally speaking. higher than that
of the other, and they may be taken to be equally
liable to the pressure and intluence which a hus-
band may be presumed to be likely to exercise
over a wife living in such a state of seclusion.
Their Lordships must therefore hold that this lady
is entitled to the protection which, according to
the authorities, the law gives to a Purdah-Nusheen,
and that the burden of proving the reality and
bona fides of the purchases pleaded by her hus.
band was properly thrown on him. They will pro-
ceed to consider whether the Courts below were
right in holding that he has failed to prove his
case.

The transactions are five in number. three of
them being in the year 1848 On the 20th of
May in that year, she is said to have sold to her
husband the two papers for Rs. 9500 and Rs.
7000, which she received on a compromise of a suit
with her step‘mother, Ashruffnissa. On the 27th
of the same month she is said to have sold to him
all the papers specified at the foot of his answer,
which make up the sum of Rs. 1,03.800, except a
paper for Rs. 11,300, which is said to have been
sold on the 12th of the following month. These
exhaust all the papers claimed, which formed part
of her original share of her fathers estate. The
papers for Rs. 1,14.500 which she received in 1853
from the estate of her sister are said to have been
sold on two occasions in 1853, viz. papers for
Rs. 32,500 on the 2nd of March, and papers for
Rs. 82,000 on the 2nd of July in that year.

These several transactions are sworn to by va-
rious witnesses, of whom most, if not all, are or
have been dependents of the Appellant. There
may be slight discrepancies in their testimony, but
its general effect is, that on each occasion money,
being the full value of the papers purchased, passed
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in cash or notes from the Appellant to the Respon-
dent. The Appellant has himself deposed to the
same effect, and has produced certain Khatta books
in corroboration of his testimony. The evidence,
if believed, is sufficient to establish his case.

Both the Courts below have, however, disbelieved
these witnesses, and have cast discredit on the
books as being unlike those which were likely to
be kept in order to record the transactions of a
person in the Appellant’s position. The Zillah
Judge, obviously a gentleman of experience and
ability, appears to have tried the cause very care-
fully; and their Lordships cannot but feel the dif-
ficulty of holding against his judgment,—confirmed,
as it is, by that of the High Court,—thati either the
witnesses or the books, considered by themselves,
are trustworthy. In what degree, then, do the
other facts and proceedings proved in the cause
tend to confirm or to cast doubt upon their testi-
naony ?

The ecarliest in date are the applications for a
certificate under Act 20 of 1841. It appears that
a difficulty had arisen in the way of drawing the in-
terest on the two Company’s papers for Rs. 9500
and Rs. 7000, which stood in the name of Moon-
shee Hossein Ali, the Respondent’s father. The
Respondent applied for a certificate, which isin the
nature of letters of administration to his estate, on
the 5th of May, 1848. Her application was re-
fused, but the grounds of the refusal do not appear.
The transfer of these papers to the Appellant took
place on the 20th of May; and on the 2nd of July
the Appellant presented to the Sudder Dewanny
Adawlut his petition, supported by a petition from
the Respondent, complaining of the Judge’s order
of the 5th of May, and praying that a certificate
might be granted to him in her stead. The only
bearing of these documents upon the present suit is,
that in his petition the Appellant describes himself
as the purchaser, and the Respondent as the seller
of these papers, and that the Respondent in her
petition says, “ Owing to my having sold to Buzloor
Ruheem, by an indorsement, the above-mentioned
papers,” etc. The importance of this as an admis-
sion is obviously very slight. We do not know,—
and this is an observation which applies to all the
other evidence of this kind,—how or by whom the




proceeding in question was explained to her, or 1o
what extent she had been informed of the signifi-
cance of her acts in these Courts.  And taking the
admission at its highest. it would show only that
for some cause or another. possibly only in order
to facilitate the receipt of interest. the apparent
ownership of the notes had been transferred from
her to her husband as upon a sale and purchase,—
the only way, in truth, in which it could be done.
since the Treasury in Calcutta takes no notice of
trusts.  ‘This proceeding throws little (if any) light
upon the nature of the actual transactions between
the man and his wife.

The proceedings next in order of date that are
relied upen are those in the exceution suit, which
began in September, 1848, and was finally disposed
of in May. 1850. These relate more to part of
the lands now held in the name of the Appel-
lant Juddonath, the title to which will be here-
after considered, than to the Company's paper.
It may. however, be well to state their nature
here.  Oomdatunnissa having, in the course of
the protracted litigation of this family, a de-
cree against the Respondent for the small sum
of Rs. 671:13:1, took ont execution against her
share in one parcel of the lands inherited from
her father. The Appellant, the Moonshee, inter-
vened as objector (App. p. 48), stating that the
lands seized, as well as the other lands belonging
to the Respondent. and these Company’s papers,
had been, before the execution, sold and trans-
ferred to him; and that the Respondent, the judg-
ment debtor. had no interest therein. Iis objec-
tion was overruled by the Judge on the 12th of
January. 1849 (App. p. 57). He brought a regular
suit to impeach that decision. to set aside the exe-
cution. and recover the property sold under it.
That suit was dismissed (App. p. 63) on the 21
of May, 1830. on the ground that the alleged
transfer of the Respondent’s properties to the Ap-
pellant was collusive. and in frand of her judg-
ment creditor.  The chief bearing which these
proceedings have upon the title to the Company's
papers is that, in the answer filed by the Respon-
dent in the regular suif, she stated that, after her
marringe with the Appellant, fearing lest her pro-
perties should be wasted by her agents, she dis-
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posed of the same to her husband, and deposited
the value thereof for the benefit of her children.
Now as that answer was filed long before any
disagreement had arisen between the Appellant
and Respondent, it can hardly be doubted that, if
not actually prepared under his direction, it was at
least filed with his concurrence. And it is to be
observed that this statement is by no means con-
sistent with the case now made by him of sales
out and out to him, in order to raise money to
meet the Respondent’s debts and other mecessary
expenses. It suggests a different motive for the
sales, and treats the proceeds as remaining in the
hands of somebody or another for the benefit of
her family. The sales, too, having been found to
be collusive and unreal transactions, are quite
consistent with the supposition that the lady was
persuaded into making them upon the suggestion
that -she would thereby defeat her creditor, and
that they were merely colourable, and made for
that purpose. These proceedings tend more to
discredit than to support the case now made by
the Appellant of absolute sales of these securities
to him, and of the actual payment by him, out of
his own funds, to the Respondent of the purchase
money at the dates of the several purchases.

That case suggests the questions so much insisted
upon in the Courts below, viz. 1st, why should the
Appellant wish to purchase these large amounts of
Company’s paper, and how was he able to pay for
them? and 2ndly, why should the Respondent
wish to sell her Company’s paper, and how has she
disposed of the proceeds of it? What answer does
the evidence give to these questions?.

The Appellant is no doubt shown to be a Zemin-
dar, possessed of considerable estates. But the
evidence tends to show that, at the time of his
marriage, and at the date of the earlier, at least,
of these transactions, he was, like many landed
proprietors, an embarrassed man. He and his
brother owed large sums to one Ramchand
Mookerjea, and to Ashotosh and Promothonauth
Day. 'These were secured by bond and by judg-
ments confessed, probably on warrant of attorney,
in the Supreme Court, of which one bore date the
97th of March, 1845, and was for C. Rs. 1,48,000,
and the other, dated the 30th of June, 1846, was
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for C. Rs, 1,00,000. The precise amounts due on
these judgment debts are not shown, but it is
pretty clear that neither judgment, at the time of
the earlier transfers of the Respondent’s papers,
was satisfied. It is admitted by the Appellant 'that
most of the Company's papers, which, lie says, he
purchased on the 27th of May and 12th of June.
1848. were, on the 6th of July. transferred by him
to Ashotosh Day, in payment of one of these
debts.  He and his brother were also, at this time,
bound, under an order of the Supreme Conrt of
the 12th of April, 1848, to pay into Court the sum
of Rs. 62,000. "It is not credible that a person
under these liabilities shonld be purchasing Go-
vernment securities, bearing a rate of Inferest
considerably lower than that at which his debts
were running on,—securities which. if the necessity
for selling them existed, might have been sold
through a broker in the market.

Again, the Appellant’s case is that the Respon-
dent. when she married him, was herself in debt:
that she afterwards required large sums for the
marriages of her children, and other family ceve-
monies; that she sold her Government securities
in order to meet these necessities, and applied the
proceeds in mecting them. Ile is driven to this
allegation, because, as it is clear that she carried
nothing with her out of his house, it would be still
more difficult to support a theory that the money
remained with her in some other form of invest-
ment. It is to be observed. however, that some of
his own witnesses assizm a different motive for the
sales. Some of them say that she sold in order to
get rid of difficnlties caused by the Company’s
papers standing in the name of a Purdahuusheen.
Others say, as she says herself in her answer in the
execttion suit, that she was afraid of being cheated
by her agents. That the Respondent, during her
seven or cight years of cohabitation with the Ap-
pellant. must have incurred considerable expenses
in respect of her children by the first mariage,
and for other family purposes, is pretty certain;
but that she should have expended upwards of two
laks of rupees, the proceeds of these Company's
papers, over and above the other property, which,
at one time. she unqguestionably possessed, is not
very credible. It is to be remembered also that,
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on the assumption of the Courts below, she had
the interest of these Company’s papers wherewith
to meet her necessary expenses. It is inconceiv-
able that if these very large sums had been expended
in the payment of debts, and for the other purposes
alleged, the Appellant should not have been able
" to give better proof of the fact. It may suit his
present purpose to profess that he had little per-
sonal connection with the management of her
affairs; but the evidence, and in particular his
-petitions of the 27th of October, 1854, and the 4th
of December, 1855 (App. pp. 88, 91), are strong
to show that this was not the case. He there re-
presents himself as active in the management of
her property and interests.

The first of these documents is, in various par-
ticnlars, strangely inconsistent with the case which
the Appellant now sets up. He is there defending
himself from a charge, made before the magistrate,
of having confined his wife, and having refused to
give up to her not merely the Company’s papers
derived from Nujmunnissa, which according to his
case would then be still in her possession, but
also Company’s papers to the amount of 80,000 or
90,000 rupees, which according to his present case
he had long before 1854 purchased from her; yet
he does not say a word of this purchase. e covers
the whole charge with the general answer, “The
entire property of Shumsoonnisseh being her own
property, and my entire property being mine, what
ground could there exist between her and me that
I should confine her?” :

We have hitherto considered the evidence with re-
ference to the alleged sales of the Government securi-
ties generally. Some parts of it however suggest con-
siderations, which apply exclusively to the alleged
transactions of 1855 and and the transfer of the
papers for Rs. 1,14,300. It may be that the means of
the Appellant to make these alleged purchases had
then been further diminished by the litigation in
which he appears to have been engaged with his
first wife, and by the decree which she obtained
against him. On the other hand, he may have been
in more prosperous circumstances than he was in
1848. DButif he, so late as the months of March and
July, 1855, paid to the Respondent the value of
these papers, it is almost incredible that he should
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not be able to give some better explanation, how
she disbursed those large sums between those dates
and the following December. when she left his
house destitute. Again, his Petition of June,
1854, discloses a state of things which is far more
consistent with the Respondent’s case, that she
made over to him these Company’s papers in 1853,
as soon as she received them, than with his, that
they were not transferred to him until 1855, It
shows that in June, 1854, a petition had been pre-
sented to the magistrate, complaining of his ill-
treatment of his wife. He no doubt denied the
charge, and treated it as emanating, not from his
wife. but from discharged servants. and the magsis-
trate then considered that the charge was un-
founded. But when light is thrown upen this
transaction by what subsequently happened. by
his ill-usage of the Respondent, which is proved.
and by her release from the house by the magis
trate, on the subsequent IPetition of 1835 it is
difficult to resist the eonclusion, that the guareel
between the liusband and wife had begun in 1854
(the date to which her plaint assigns its eom-
mencement), or at all events, that in July, 1855,
there must been a state of feeling between them,
which would malkie a voluntary sale of her pro-
perty to a him a most improbable transaction. If
he did, so shortly before their final separation,
obtain a transfer of those securities to Liimself, the
burden of showing that he did so righteously is
assuredly made heavier.

Again, the evidence of ill-usage which has been
given in this snit, seems to have a further bearing
upon the issne between the parties which is now
under consideration. We have not now to con-
sider whether what he did was within or in excess
of the marital powers of a Mussulman husband.
It is suofficient to say that very harsh treatment,
and a restraint from which the magistrate saw fit
to release her, are proved, and that she left the
house in cireumstances to which no native woman
of her rank, who was not suffering under a sense
of intolerable wrong, would have exposed herself.
Now what was the cause of this grave quarrel?
Her account of it is more probable than his, if
indeed he has given any. It seems more likely
that he should have attempted by harsh measures




to frighten her out of a just demand, than that
he should have met, in that way, one which was
without foundation. Her conduct, too, if the

quarrel had begun in 1854, has ever since been
_consistent ; his, as has been shown above, has been
inconsistent.

It would doubtless have been more satisfactory
if the Respondent had thought fit to support her
claim by her own testimony. Her abstaining from
so doing certainly affords an objection to her case
deserving of serious consideration ; and their Lord-
ships do not think that it is altogether removed
by the suggestion of the strong repugnance felt
by native females in the Respondent’s position to
taking such a step. But the objection, though it
may weaken, does not destroy the case made by the
Respondent ; and their lordships are of opinion
that, whatever weight may be due to it, it is quite
insufficient to affect the conclusions in her favour
to be drawn from the facts and circumstances of
the case which have been already adverted to.

The admission of the tutor, a witness produced
on the part of the Respondent, to the effect that on
the transfer to which he speaks he saw money pass,
i1s also a circumstance in the Appellant’s favour.
But if the witness has spoken the truth about the
money, it is to be remembered that the transaction
to which he speaks was that of the 27th of May,
1848, when it may have been desired to make a
colourable sale for the purpose of defeating the
execution in the manner shortly afterwards at-
tempted.

Their Lordships, then, after carefully weighing
the evidence and considering the able arguments
addressed to them, have come to the conclusion
that the burden of proving bond fide purchases of
these Company's papers was properly thrown on
the Appellant; that he has failed to do so, and
that no ground has been shown for disturbing the
concurrent judgments of both the Courts below
on this part of the case.

The next question for consideration is that raised
by the Appeal of Jodonath Bose, as well as by that
of the Moonshee, viz. whether that portion of the
decree under Appeal which directs the reconvey-
ance to the Respondent of the immoveable pro-
perty held by Jodonath, and the payment to her of
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the mesne profits by both the Appellants, can be
supported.

The property in question consists of certain
shares in two gardens, of which the entirety formed
part of the estate of Moonshee Hossein Ali.  They
are known as the Dum-Dum Garden and the
Narain Mundul Gardens, and, like the rest of the
estate, were divided amongst the colieirs in twenty-
fourtl shares. Of the first, the Decree gives to the
Respondent sixteen shares, or two-thirds of the
whole, eomprising both her original share and the
share which she inherited from her sister. Of the
other, it gives ber only the eight shares inherited
from her sister, her original share having passed,
under an execution sale, into the hands of a stran-
ger to the suit,

The history of the Dum-Dum Garden, after the
death of Moonshee IHossein Ali, and its division
amongst his heirs, is this:—As early as 1843, Bo-
alli sold his five shares, and Ashruffnissa Begum
sold her one share to one Dilrus Begnm for Rs.
3000. These six shares were conveyed by one bill
of sale, dated the 20th Dysack, 1250. On the
22nd of May, 1548, the Respondent executed a
bill of sale, by which she purported to convey her
original eight shares of this garden to her husband,
in consideration of C, R. 2000, On the 15th of Au-
gust, 1848, he, by an indenture in the English form.
conveved these eight shares to Dilrus Begum, in
consideration of C. R. 4000. On the 20th of July,
1853, Dilrus Begum, by a bill of sale; conveyed
both the six shares which she had acquired from
Boalli and Ashruffnissa, and the eight shares which
she had acquired from the Appellant the Moon-
shee, to one Jegree Khanum, for Rs. 6000. And
on the 27th of September, 1853, Jegree Khanum
conveyed all these fourteen shares to the Ap-
pellant Jodonath, for Rs. 4000. On the 9th of
January, 1854, the Respondent executed a bill of
sale, purporting to convey the one-third part of
this garden, which she had inherited from her sis-
ter, to Jodonath, for Rs. 2000. The Appellant
Jodonath therefore holds twenty-two shares of this
garden,—eight under a direct conveyance from the
Respondent ; eight under a title, founded on her
conveyanee to her husband, but strengthened by
the mesne conveyances; and six under a title,
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dating from 1843, and unimpeached, at least in this
suit.

In May, 1848, the Respondent conveyed her
original eight shares of the Narain Mundul Gar-
dens to her husband ; this property was the subject
of the seiznre which gave rise to the execution
suit; and the sale having been declared fraudunlent
as against the judgment creditor, these shares were
purchased by the judgment creditor, and cannot
now be followed.

On the 12th of May, 1855, the Respondent exe-
cuted a bill of sale, purporting to convey to the
Appellant Jodonath, in consideration of Rs. 1500,
the eight shares of this garden, which she had in-
herited from her sister. That transaction is im-
peached. He had previously acquired part of the
share of Booalli in this garden, having inherited it
from his brother Koylas, who, in 1850, purchased
it at an execution sale. His title to this portion
is not impeached.

‘The substantial issue on this part of the case is
one between the Respondent and Jodonath Bose.
It is obvious, therefore, that the principle upon
which, on the trial of the issue already considered,
the burden of proof was shifted from the Plaintiff
to the Defendant, is not necessarily applicable to
the trial of this issue. The Respondent comes into
Court, seeking to be relieved from the effect of her
own econveyances, the execution of which she does
not dispute, against one who, if not an absolute
stranger, stands in no fiduciary relation to her;
and it lies upon her to establish her right to that
relief. Ias she done so?

She has proved that Jodonath Bose is the servant
of her husband, She has produced three witnesses,
Gholam Arub, Gholam Ruhman, and Sheikh Taki,
to prove that her husband is the person who is
really in the possession or in the receipt of the
rents and profits of the property. Butnothing can
be less satisfactory than the testimony of these
witnesses, of whom the first is her manager; the
second, a tailor; and the third, a menial servant ;
none of them having any connection with the
lands. '

The evidence of possession given on the other
side, by ryots and others, may not be altogether
trustworthy ; but, such as it is, it outweighs the
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loose statements of these three witnesses, Some
of the inferences to be drawn from the conveyances
from her to her husband are also favourable to the
Respondent’s case; but these apply only to that
portion of the property claimed, which consists of
her original share in the Dum-Dum Garden.

It may be conceded that the conveyunces from
her to her husband in 1848, considered with the
light reflected on them from other parts of this
case, and in particular from the proceedings in the
execution suit, could not stand. It may also be
conceded that if the question were between her
and her husband, he ought not to be permitted to
say that she is bound by her fraudulent convey-
ance, since she may be presumed to have executed
it under his influence or pressure. And if the pro-
perty had passed directly from him to his depen-
dant, the presumption that the latter is a mere
trustee for him might be stronger than it is.

But what are the facts proved? This portion of
the property in dispute passed apparently by sale
from Buzloor Ruleem to Dilrus Begum. 1t ve-
mained with her for nearly five years; was sold,
ostensibly at least, by her to Jegree Khanum. from
whom two months later it passed to Jodonath.
These intermediate conveyances are treated in the
Courts below, and in the argument before their
Lordships, as mere “ cirenity of frand ;" and it has
been argned that we have no proof who Dilrus
Begum and Jegree Khanum are, or, indeed, that
there ever were such persons.  DBut what proof, on
the part of the Respondent, is there to support
these arguments?! On the other side, there are
witnesses who state that Dilrus Begum was the
wife of the Nawab of Chitpore, a well-known per-
son, and that Jegree was a wife or concubine of
apparently the same person. The conveyance to
Dilrus was by English deed, prepared and executed
in the office of a respectable English attorney, act-
ing apparently for the purchaser. That circuam-
stance ufforded the means of investigating that
transaction. But no attempt has been made to do
so. ~Again, that Dilrus Begum was a real person-
age, not necessarily connected with the Appellant
the Moonshee, is placed almost beyond a doubt by
the undisputed fact that in 1343, several years be-
fore the second marriage of the Respondent, the
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six shares of this garden had been conveyed to her
by Boalli and Ashruffnissa. What, again, was the
motive for this “circuity of fraud”? If Dilrus
Begum held five years' benamee from the Moon-
shee, why raise suspicion by transferring the pro-
perty from her to his known dependant, Jodonath ?
Sir Roundell Palmer insisted strongly on the fluc-
tuations in the amounts of the purchase money for
which the different instruments purported to con-
vey the same property, as a badge of fraud. The
first transaction, which we may admit to have been
fictitious, expresses a consideration which, on a
comparison with the price for which the six shares
were sold in 1843, secems to be below the real
value of the property. ‘Iried by that test, the sum
of Rs. 4000, for which it was conveyed to Dilrus,
would be about the true value. This fact, taken
by itself, tends to support the reality of the sales to
Dilrus. Again, if she sold for Rs. 6000 property
which had cost her Rs. 7000, the difference is not
greater than might be accounted for by the neces-
sities of the vendor, or by a diminution in the value
of the property in the period during which it re-
mained in her hands. The further reduction of
the price to Rs. 4000 in the sale to Jodonath is
certainly a more suspicious circumstance. It is
not, however, one which seems to go very far to
supply any defect of proof on the part of the Re-
spondent. It is not impossible that Jegree Khanum
may have found that she had made a bad bargain,
or that Jodonath may have made an extremely
good one. On the other hand, if the transactions
were fictitious, and the price cost the professed
purchaser nothing, it is not easy to see why an
adequate consideration was not expressed in the
conveyance. There seems to have been no inquiry
or cross-examination on this point in the Courts
below.

Again, what is the case proved in respect of the
conveyances from the Respondent herself to Jodo-
nath? She is proved to have execcuted these con-
veyances. She has not met this fact fairly in her
pleadings. In the original plaint there is no men-
tion of Jodonath’s title; and on the face of the
supplemental plaint it is not very clear whether
she treats the conveyances as forgeries, or admits
the execution and impeaches their effect. She has
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certainly not stated on what grounds she impeaches
them, nor has she come forward as a witness to
explain her execution of them. It lay upon her
to do so; to show by her own or other testimony
under what circumstances they were procured from
her, and to rebut the evidence that the considera-
tion money passed to her, Again, the purchase
of these parcels of land by Jodonath is not wholly
improbable. The purchases are not beyond the
means of a person in that rank of life. He al-
ready held portions of hoth gardens by titles not
deduced from the Respondent, and unimpeached.
The first conveyance from the Respondent was exe-
eated in January, 1854, when the Moonshee was
absent from home and at Singapore. The Zillah
Judge treats the civeumstance of his absence as in-
dicative of frandulent forethought and contrivance.
His presence probably would have afforded the in-
ference of pressure and undue influence. The
habit may be superinduced by the manifold cases
of fraud with which they have to deal; but judges
in India are perhaps somewhat too apt to see fraud
everywhere. The second conveyance was in May,
1855. At that time the guarrel with her husband
had, according to the Respondent’s case, begun.
She is not likely to have executed this instrument
voluntarily at his instigation. She has not shown
that she was forced to do it. And on the other
hand, it i not improbable that in the circnmstances
in which she thus stood, she may have been glad
to raise the comparatively inconsiderable sum
which is stated to have been the price of the pro-
perty.

On the whole, then, their Lordships are of opi-
nion that the Respondent has failed to show a suf-
ficient title to recover any of the shares in these
gardens from the Appellant Jodonath. ‘The habit
of holding land benamee is inveterate in India;
but that does not justify the Courts in making
every presumption against apparent ownership.
This principle was enforced by this Committee in
a recent case. Their Lordships do not deny that
in the particular case the connection of Jodonath
with the other Appellant, the proved conduet of
the latter towards his wife, and other circum-
stances threw some cloud of suspicion over the
title to these pareels of land. Buf snch suspicions

e
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are not proof. Their Lordships think that the
Judges of both Courts below have given too much
weight to them; that they have not sufficiently
considered in what degree the burden of proof lay
upon the Respondent; and that when the proofs
which she ought to have given and might have
given were defective, they have allowed the defi-
ciency to be supplied by presumptions and infer-
ences which the facts do not altégether warrant.
Their Lordships cannot, therefore, recommend Her
Majesty to confirm this portion of the decrees in
the * Property Suit.”

Third Suit.

As the third suit also concerns property, and the
point raised by the Appeal in it is very short, their
Lordships think it will be convenient to dispose of
it before they proceed to comsider the Appeal in
the “ Restitution Suit.” Two objections were taken
to the maintenance of this suit. It was pleaded,
first, that the Respondent’s claim was barred by the
law of limitation; and, secondly, that she was
preclnded from suing te enforee it by the Tth sec-
tion of Act VIIL: of 1859, which provides that “if a
plaintiff relinquish or omit to sue for any portion
of his claim, a suit for the portion so relinquished
or omifted shall not afterwards be entertained.”
From the Plaint it appears that the Company’s
paper for Rs. 16,000, which is the subject of the
suit, was specified in the petitions for a certificate
under Act XX, of 1841, already referred to, together
with the papers for Rs. 9500 and Rs. 7000, which
are included in the Respondent’s demand in the
« Property Suit,” and that her claim respecting it is
precisely the same as her claim for the other two
papers. The only reason she assigns for not suing
for it in the former suit is, that ‘“as she was a
Purdanusheen and unacquainted with reading and
writing, she could not ascertain anything about the
- aforesaid Government paper and the interest of the
same.” She says she discovered her mistake in
July, 1859, and insists that her ecanse of action
arcse at that time. The Zillah Judge held that
the second objection was fatal to the suit, which
he accordingly dismissed on that ground.

The High Court has reversed this decision, for
the following reasons:—they hold with him that
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the omission to include this item in the first suit
was an oversight; that she knew of the existence
of this paper before she brought her first snit, and
might have included it therein; and that the real
question to be decided was whether that omission,
negleet, or oversight was sufficient to bar her pre-
sent claims under the law fairly applied. This
question they decide in the negative, on the ground
that it was clear she was not actuated by any frau-
dulent or dishonest motive ; that the stamp paid on
the first suit would have covered also this paper;
that she cannot have omitted this claim in order
to bring the case within the cognizance of a parti-
cular court; and that although it may be desirable
for the ends of justice that the various items
claimed by a plaintiff should form the subject of
one single action, yet there was nothing in the law
to make it imperative upon her to include every
item of such a claim as hers in a single snit.

To these reasons their Lordships cannot assent.
If the words of a law are clear and positive, they
annot be controlled by any consideration of the
motives of the party to whom it is to be applied.
nor limited by what the Judges who apply it may
suppose to have been the reasons for enaeting it.
The words of this law are,—* If a plaintiff' relin-
quish or omit to sue for any portion of his claims.”
It plainly includes accidental or involuntary omis-
sions as well as acts of deliberate relinquishment.
In their Lordships’ opinion, the only ground on
which (if at all) the Judgment of the ITigh Court
could be sapported, is that which is somewhat
doubtingly expressed by the Judges in the fol-
lowing sentence :—* Nor do we think that, under
the circumstances of the case, the Plaintiff may
not fairly plead that she has a distinet and sepa-
rate cause of action for the recovery of this piece
of paper made over to the Defendant on a par-
ticular date.” Their Lordships think that the
correct test in all cases of this kind is whether
the claim in the new suit is, in fact, founded
on a cause of action distinet from that which
was the foundation of the former suit, and they
hayve accordingly considered whether the present
snit can be maintained on that ground. Dut
the cause of action in the former suit of the Re-
spondent seems to them to be the refusal by the
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liusband to restore, or- his misappropriation of, the
wife’s property, which she says she intrusted to
him. There is nothing to distinguish the deposit
of this particular Company’s paper from the depo-
sit of those which she deposited with it, and has
recovered in the former suit. It was a mere item
of her demand, and is admitted on the face of her
present Plaint to have been omitted from it, for no
other reason than the very insufficient one before
mentioned. If she was; justified in instituting a
separate subsequent suit for this particular Com-
pany’s paper for 10,000 Rs., she would have been
equally justified in making each one of the Com-
pany’s papers which are comprised in the “ Pro-
perty Suit” successively the subject of an indepen-
dent suit. Their Lordships are of opinion that
the ruling of the Zillah Judge on this point
was correct, and that the suit was properly dis-
missed. This being their view, it is unnecessary
to say anything on the question of limitation.
They are disposed, however, to think that the claim
being founded on an alleged breach of trust, was
not, as pleaded, subject to limitation, either under
the old law or under Act No. 14 of 1859, which,
the suit having been commenced in December,
1861, seems to be the law applicable to it. If the
Plaintiff had failed to prove a breach of trust, but
had established some other title to relief, the ques-
tion of limitation might have arisen. But this
could only happen upon a trial of the suit on its
merits,

Restitution Suit.

Their Lordships will now address themselves to
the novel and difficult questions raised by the ap-
peal “in the Restitution Suit.”

The first is that which has been strenuously
argued at the Bar, though it does not appear to
have been raised in the Courts below, or even in
the Respondent’s case, viz., whether any suit by a
Mussulman husband will lie in the Civil Courts of
India to enforce his marital rights under the Mo-
hamedan law, by compelling his wife, against her
will (she being a free agent, and not detained by
others), to return to cohabitation with him. If the
law which regulates the relations of the parties
gives to one of them a right, and that right be
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denied. the denial is a wrong ; and nnless the con-
trary be shown by authority, or by strong argu-
ments, it must be presumed that for that wrong
there must be a remedy in a Court of Justice, Of
authority negativing the jurisdiction there is none.
[t has been argued that the proper remedy, if there
be one, i the denial of maintenance to the rebel-
livus wife, or, al most, a suit for damages; because
a suit to compel the wife to return to her husband,
though obyiously’ a more complete remedy than
either of them, is in the nature of a suit for specifie
pertormance ; and being founded on the contract of
marriage, which the Mohamedan law regards as a
civil eontract. the Court entertdiming the suit wust
be prepared to enforee all the obligations, however
minute. which, aceording to that law. tow from the
contract. whichever party has a right to iusist upon
them.  And referring to the definition of some of
those obligations, as given with somewhai prurient
particnlarity in certain Mohamedan trentises, the
learned Counsel argued that it was impessible for
Courts constituted like those of British India to
exercise such a jurisdietion. It may be admitted
that the Courts of India would properly decline to

entertain such questions;

’

:;lthllllg_{]l amongst the
Wahabees of Central Arabia, or 6ther communities
in which the Mohamedan law is observed in its
utmost strictness, the magistrate might perhaps
tuke eognizance of them, Dut this admission is not
decisive of the question. The Canonists lay down
many things concerning the relative duties of man
and wife whiels the Courts Christian, at least of our
country. feel compelled to leave as duties of im-
perfect obligation, They do not therefore refuse
to enforce the broad duty of eohabitation, In the
words of Lord Stowell, quoted by Mr. Attorney-
Geuneral, *They are content to take the wife to the
hushand’s door and to leave her there.”

But how does this question stand upen the

anthorities?

In the case of Ardaseer Curseijee v.
Peroce r’f-r‘:/r. 6 Moore. T. A.. 390, in which it was
here deeided that a suit for restitution of conjugal
rights between Parsees, and a fortiori, one between
Hindoos and Mahomedans, did not lie on the eccle-
siastical side of the Presidency Courts. Dr. Lush-
ington, in delivering the Judgment of the Com-
mittee, says, * The Civil Courts in India can bend
p
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their administration of justice to the laws of the
various suitors who seek their aid. They ean ad-
minister Mahomedan law to Mohamedans, Hindoo
law to Hindoos ; but the Eeclesiastical law has no
such'ﬁexibﬂity.” And after ruling that the Court ,
below had not the jurisdiction which it claimed, he
adds, ¢ But we should much regret if there were no
Court and no law whereby a remedy could be ad-
ministered to the evils which must be incidental to
married life amongst them (the Parsees). We do
not pretend to know what may be the duties and
obligations attending upon the matrimonial union
between the Parsees, nor what remedies may exist
for the violation of them; but we conceive that
there must be some laws, or some customs having
the effect of laws, which apply to the married state
of persons of this description.” And he afterwards
observes, **Such remedies (the remedies afforded by
their own usages) we conceive that the Supreme
Clourt on the civil side might administer; or at
least remedies as nearly approaching to them as
circumstances would allow.” It may be said that
those dicta, though proeeeding from so high an
authority, are extrajudicial, and merely indicate an
opinion that suits of this kind might possibly be
entertained by the Civil Courts of India. The
Attorney-General, however, has cited positive au-
thorities which support the jurisdiction,.and shows
the principles upon which it ought to be exercised.
There are the cases of Mussumat Hingu, decided in
1832, and reported in 6 S. D. A, R. p. 200; of
Mussumat Ameene, decided in 1841 and reported
7 8. D. A R, p 27; and the case of Sona Chand
Bibi, decided in 1848 and reported in the Reports
of the Bengal Sudr Coutt for that year, at p. 795.
In the last of these cases the suit was dismissed on
the ground that the marriage was not proved, but
the jurisdiction was not questioned. The second
case may be distinguishable from the present on
the gronnd that the wife was of tender years, and
under the control of the co-defendants in the suit.
But in the first case the wife was clearly of full age,
and a free agent. The co-defendant in the suit,
though charged with harbouring her, had little
more control over her than the co-defendant in the
present case had over the Respondent. The suit,
which went through three Courts, was resisted by




the wife on grounds personal to herself; and it
was finally decided that, according to the Mohame-
dan law, by which the question was to be decided,
the Plaintiff had a right to the possession of his
wife, and she was compelled to return to him. It
does not very clearly appear by what process the
judgment in this case, or in that of Mussumant
Ameena, was to be enforced.  From some passages
it might be inferred that in the event of dis-
obedience the wife was to be given bodily into her
husband’s hands. Whether this conld be done
under the new Act of Procedure, which now regua-
lates the Civil Courts of India, may well be doubted.
Disobedience to the Order of a Court directing the
wife to return to cohabitation would seem to fall
within the 200th section of the C'ode, and to bhe en-
forceable only by imprisonment, or attachment of
property, or both.

Upon authority, then, as well as principle, their
Lordships have no doubt that a Mussulman hus-
band may institute a suit in the Civil Courts of
India, for a declaration of his right to the posses-
sion of his wife, anil for a sentence that she return
to cohabitation; and that that suit must be deter-
mined according to the principles of the Moha-
medan law.  The latter proposition follows not
merely from the imperative words of Regulation TV.
of 1703, sec. 15, but from the nature of the thing.
For since the rights and duties resulting from the
contract of marriage vary in different communities;
so, especially in India, where there is no general
marriage law, they can be only ascertained by re-
ference to the particular lay of the contracting
parties.

The matrimonial law of the Mohamedans, like
that of every ancient community, favours the
stronger sex. The husband ecan dissolve the tie at
his will, subject to the condition of paying the
wife her dower and other allowances: but she can-
not separate herself from him except under the
arrangement called Khoola, which is made upon
terms to which both are assenting parties, and
operates in law as the divoree of the wife by the
hushand. 1t cannot. we think. be doubted. that,
whilst the tie subsists, his power over her is con-
siderable. The cases already cited are to the effect
that he may compel her to refurn to his house, if
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she has left it. 'We do not find this expressed in
the Hedayah, which speaks only of her forfeiting
lier right to maintenance if she be disobedient or
refractory, or go abroad without her husband’s
consent, until she return and make submission (vol.
i. p. 394); but it seems implied throughout that
she, from the time she enters his house, is ‘under
restraint, and can only leave it legitimately by his
permission, or upon a legal divorce or separation,
made with his consent. In fact, the principle of
keeping a man’s hareem in seclusion and under his
confrol is so essential a part of the framework of
Oriental saciety that it is naturally assumed and .
taken for granted by a Mussulman expounder of
the law.

On the other hand, the law assures to the wife
considerable rights as against her husband. She
may insist on maintenance according to her rank
and his ability ; and if he fails to give it, she may
enforce that right before the Kazce (1 Hedaya,
book iv. chap. xv. sec. 1. pp. 393, 394). If he has
power to keep her within the zenanah, and to pre-
vent access to her, subject to certdin qualifications,
he is bound to provide her with a separate apart-
ment, exclusively appropriated to her use (p. 402).
As to personal violence, there are certainly pas-
sages in the Hedayah which, founded on a text in
the Koran, imply that the husband may use it for
correction ; but this right of corporal chastisement
is expressly said to “be restricted to the condition
of safety;” and it may be questioned whether these
authorities go the full length of the Futwah at
p- 14 of the record (sce Hedayah, vol. ii. pp.
75-81). The Mohamedan law, on a question of
what is legal cruelty between man and wife, would
probably not differ materially from our own, of
which one of the most recent expositions is the
following : —*“There must be actual violence of
such a character as to endanger personal health or
safety ; or there must be a reasonable apprehen-
sion of it. The Court, as Lord Stowell said, has
never been driven off this ground.”

If, however, it be granted that, according to
Mohamedan law, the husband may sue to enforce
his right to the custody of his wife’s person; and
that, if her defence be cruelty, she must prove
cruelty of the kind just described, it by no means
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follows that she has not other defeuces to the suit
which would not be admitted by our Ecclesiastical
Courts in a suit for the restitution of conjugal
rights. The marriage tie amongst Mohamedans is
not so indissoluble as it is amongst Christians,
The Mahomedan wife, as has been shown abaove.
has rights which the Christian—or ar least the
English—wife has not against her hushand. An
Indian Court might well admit defences founded
on the violation of those rights, and either refuse
its assistance to the husband altogether. or grant it
only upon terms of his securing the wife in the en-
joyment of her personal safety. and her other legal
rights; or it might, on a sufficient case, exercise
that jurisdiction which is attributed to the Kazee
by the Futwah at p. 32 of the Record (if the law.
indeed, warrants such a jurisdiction), of selecting a
proper place of residence for the wife, other than
her husband’s house.

Enough has been said to show that, in their
Lordships’ opinion, the determination of any suit
of this kind requires careful consideration of the
Mohamedan law, as well as strict proof of the
facts to which it is to be applied.  Ias the present
case been so tried and determined in the Courts
below? Their Lordships are constrained to say
that this has not been the case.  In the first place.
they think that the rafio decidendi adopted by the
Judges of both Conrts is erroneous. The Principal
Sudr Ameen Leld that oppression had been proved
(the correetness of his conclusion will be hereafter
considered ). e did not then proceed to comsider
whether the oppression was so far beyond the
bounds of marital authority, under the Mohamedan
law, as to constitute an answer to the suit. Ie
seemed to think that, oppression onee proved, the
case was taken out of the Mohamedan law, and
was to be decided on what the Court. upon general
principles, might deem to be expedient for the
security of the wife's person. e then proceeded
to argue, apparently without the slightest founda-
tion of proof, that the wife, having been ill-treated,
had probably been unfaithful, and that if’ she were
restored to her husband, he was not unlikely to
revenge himself by taking her life. e afterwurds
argned, with more reason, upon the danger of
restoring her to one who had been decreed liable
to pay her a very large sum of money.

9




26

The facts upon which the Judges of the High
Court proceeded were that the magistrate had seen
fit to release the Respondent from her husband’s
house, and that a decree had passed against him
for having made away with her property for a large
sum, of which they overstated the amount. They
appear to have considered that, according to the
Mohamedan law, these facts were not an answer to
the suit; and they then say, “This being so, are
we required to decide this case in conformity with
the principles of the Mohamedan law? Are we to
compel the Defendant to return to her husband,
convinced as we are that she should not be forced
to return? If, under the Mohamedan law, no wife
can separate herself from her husband under any
circumstances whatsoever, the law is clearly re-
pugnant to natural justice, and we are not bound
to follow it. The Mohamedan law giving no relief
to a woman, be the conduct of the husband ever so
bad: it is a case to be disposed of by equity and
good conscience, And on these principles we have
no hesitation in saying that the grounds upon
which the Defendant has separated from her hus.
band justify her in that step,” etc. ,

The passages just quoted, if understood in their
literal sense, imply that cases of this kind are to be
decided without reference to the Mohamedan law,
but according to what is termed equity and good
conscience, 7. ¢. according that which the Judge
may think the principles of natural justice require
to be done in the particular case.

Their Lordships most emphatically dissent from
that conclusion. It is,in their opinion, opposed to
the whole policy of the law in British India, and
particularly to the enactment already referred to
(Regulation 1V, of 1793, sec. 15), which directs
that in suits regarding marriage and caste, and all
religions usages and institutions, the Mohamedan
laws with respect to Mohamedans, and the Hindoo
laws with regard to Hindoos, are to be considered
as the general rules by which Judges are to form
their decisions; and they can conceive nothing
more likely to give just alarm to the Mohamedan
community than to learm by a judicial decision,
that their law, the application of which has been
thus secured to them, is to be overridden upon a
question which so materially concerns their do-
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mestic relations. The Judges were not dealing
with a case in which the Mohamedan law was in
plain conflict with the general municipal law or
with the requirements of a more advanced and civi-
lized society,—as, for instance, if a Mussulman had
insisted on the right to slay his wife taken in adul-
tery. In the reports of our Eeclesiastical Courts
there is no lack of cases in which a lnunane man,
jndging according to his own sense of what is just
and fair, without reference to positive law, wonld
let the wife go free; and yet, the proof falling
short of legal cruelty, the Judge has felt constrained
to order her to return to her husband.

In what they have just said their Lordships must
be taken to object only to the general supersession
of the Mohamedan law as the ratio decidendi in
cases of this deseription, which seems to them to
be implied in the judgments under review.

They do not mean to lay down that it was suffi-
cient for the decision of the case to show that. ac-
cording to the Mohamedan law, the husband has a
right to the enstody of his wife, or that there was
no answer to his snit unless it conld be shown that
the wife had been separated from him either by
Talik or Khoola, either of which would dissolve the
vinculum. ‘This assumption, which seems to have
been made by the Judges of the High Court, is,
their Lordships think, erroneons. It seems to them
clear that if cruelty in a degree rendering it unsafe
for the wife to return to her husband's dominion
were established. the Court might refuse to send
her back. It may be. too, that gross failure by the
husband of the performance of the obligations
which the marriage contract imposes on him for
the benefit of the wite, might, if properly proved.
afford good grounds for refusing to him the assis-
tance of the Court. And, as their Lordships have
already intimated, there may be caszes in which the
Court would qualify its interference by imposing
terms on the husband. Butall these are questions
to be carefully considered, and considered with
some reference to Mohamedan law.

Before, however, any of these principles can be
applied, the facts to which they are to be applied
must be established by legal proof; and this, their
Lordships are of opinion, has not been done in the
present case. Besides the evidence on the futile
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and now abandoned issue abeut freemasonry, there
is little evidence in the cause.

The Zillah Judge’s judgment in the “ Property
Suit ” was put in evidence. The fact, therefore,
that the Appellant had been decreed liable to make
good a large sum of money to the Respondent in
respect of the property which he had misappro-
priated was established ; but the proof of personal
cruelty rests almost entirely on the proceeding of
the magistrate. That proceeding is neither one
inter partes nor even a conviction of the Appellant
upon a criminal charge. It was treated by the
Nizamut Adawlut (Record, p. 83) as being the re-
cord of an act done by a police officer, and not the
judicial proceeding of a magistrate. It is, there-
fore, difficult to see how, in strictness, it can be
evidence at all against the Appellant; but at most
it proves only that the magistrate set the lady free
from what he considered improper restraint.

To establish a case of cruelty as a defence to the
suit, the Respondent might have called the magis-
trate, if then still in India, to speak to the state in
which he found her when he set her free. She might
also have given such evidence of her treatment as
she adduced in the * Property Suit,” but which,
whatever were her reasons for it, she did not ad-
duce in this suit. And, lastly, she might have
given her own testimony, which it is most desir-
able to have on such an issue. She has failed to
do any of these things; and it is impossible to say
that the Courts below had before them, in proof,
the facts from which any Court could infer that
a defence on the ground of cruelty had been esta-
blished.

From what has been said, it must be obvious that
their Lordships are not prepared to affirm the de-
crees under appeal in this suit. They do not, how-
ever, feel themselves in a condition to make a final
decree, which would put an end to this painful
litigation. They will not visit upon the Respon-
dent the mismanagement of her cause by sending
her back at once to her husband. Enough has
been shown to render it doubtful whether she can
be restored to his zenanah with safety, at least
whilst the relation of debtor and creditor continues
to subsist between them, unless proper security for
her protection is taken. It may ultimately turn
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out that she onght not to be sent back at all
Their Lordships must, therefore. unwillingly re-
eommend that this cause be remitted to the High
Court. with directions to put the same in a course
of re-trial, and with power, if necessary. to amend
the issues or frame new ones.  If cruelty be relied
upon as a defence, there should be a distinet issue
as to the fact of crnelty.

Their Lordships, however, cannot help suggest-
ing, for the consideration of the parties, that it is
for the interest, the happiness, and the respecta-
bility of both to settle the questions still open be-
tween them by amicable arrangement rather than
by further litigation. They have surely friends
who might effect such an arrangement between
them.

Their Lordships have now only to recapitulate
the several recommendations which they will hum-
bly make to Her Majesty on these Appeals. These
are—

Ist. That the Appeal of the Appellant, Buzloor
Ruheem, in the “Property Suit,” be dismissed, except
so far as it relates to his liability to pay the mesne
profits of the shares in the Dum Dum and Narain
Mundul Gardens jointly with the Appellant Judoo-
nath Bose ; that the Appeal of the last-named Ap-
pellant in the same suit be allowed ; and that the
decree of the High Court be amended by omitting
so much thereof as relates to the shares in those
gardens, and by direciing, in lieu thereof, that that
portion of the Respondent’s claim be dismissed with
costs, and that the said decree be in all other re-
spects confirmed.

2dly. That in suit No. 256 of 1862 the decree
of the High Court be reversed, and that. in lien
thereof, the decree of the Zillah Judge dismissing
the Respondent’s suit, with costs, be affirmed, with
the costs of the Appeal in the High Conrt.

Ardly. That in the *Restitution Suit” the decrees
of the High Court and of the Principal Sudder
Ameen be reversed, and the cause be remitted to
the High Court, with directions to have the same
retried on fresh evidence, and with power to amend
the issnes or to frame new issues, if they shall see
fit to do so.

That the Respondent should pay the costs of
the Appeals in Sunit No. 256 of 1862 and in the

/
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“ Restitution Suit.” That she should also pay the
costs of the Appeal of Judoonath Bose in the
“ Property Suit.” And that the Appellant Buzloor
Ruheem should pay the costs of his Appeal in that

suit.










